
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


February 25, 2010
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, February 25, 2010, at
7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
_____________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PUBLIC COMMENT:
There was none.


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1-7 as presented.
Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PARKS AND RECREATION:
1. Approval of staff’s request to increase Parks and Recreation Public Relations Expenditure Account and


Revenues  by $448.88 to recognize a donation from Jack Gilson.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 25, 2010
Page 2


FINANCE DEPARTMENT:
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt mid-year budget adjustments for FY 2010.  A copy of the request


and backup, identified as “Attachment No.  2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE:
3. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office


Criminal Investigations Division by $11,697.54 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
Federal Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.  3", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


WATER SYSTEM:
4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to allow Fayetteville Main Street to insert a flyer in County water bills during


the months of March and July.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to amend the Department of Fire and Emergency Services FY 2010 Budget


to accept a $7,227.10 grant from the Georgia Association of Emergency Medical Services for the purchase of
replacement computers for the County’s ambulances. A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES:
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to amend the Department of Fire and Emergency Services FY 2010 Budget


to accept an Assistance to Firefighters Grant in the amount of $14,543.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES:
7. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on February 3, 2010 and February 11, 2010.


OLD BUSINESS:
A. RATIFICATION OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS


RELATED TO THE ACCEPTANCE AND ADMINISTRATION OF A JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT FOR THE
GRIFFIN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN THE AMOUNT OF $375,088, INCLUDING THE COUNTY’S COMMITMENT
TO ACT AS SUBGRANTEE AND FINANCIAL AGENT FOR SAID GRANT:


Superior Court Clerk Sheila Studdard appeared before the Board to discuss this item.  She reminded the Board that this
item had come before the Board early in 2009 and asked for permission to apply for a judicial grant that would cover the
Griffin Judicial Circuit.  She noted that this was part of the stimulus package that was offered at that time.  She said the
application was complete and the funds were awarded to the Circuit for the project of data sharing within the criminal
justice arena of the courts.  She said Fayette County had agreed to be the fiscal agent as well as the operating agent
for this grant.  She pointed out that the funds were only available for three years and they must be expended within that
time.  She also noted that this was the only grant application that was submitted to the Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council for a Circuit project that only had one project.  She asked for the Board’s consideration to approve this request.
  
Chairman Smith commended Ms. Studdard for taking the forefront on this issue and stated this was quite a commitment
on Ms. Studdard’s part without any funding commitment on the Board’s part other than some staff time to handle some
of the paper work.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 25, 2010
Page 3


Chairman Smith made a motion to ratify authorization for the Chairman to execute any and all documents related to the
acceptance and administration of a Justice Assistance Grant for the Griffin Judicial Circuit in the amount of $375,088,
including the County’s commitment to act as subgrantee and financial agent for said grant. Commissioner Frady
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


B. CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDED POLICY AND PROCEDURES DOCUMENT TITLED
“ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION OF NON-CITIZEN APPLICANTS FOR BENEFITS,” IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE “GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT” AS AMENDED:


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland appeared before the Board to discuss this item.  She remarked that during the last
several months staff had been working to develop procedures in order to comply with a change that was made to this
Act in 2009.  She noted that the change required local governments to verify non-citizen status in regard to employment
and other benefits offered by the County which include vendors and any type of contracts with individuals and pointed
out that the process was to make sure that these individuals were eligible to work in the United States.  She said in
addition a large portion of this would apply to bids and contracts that would require any type of contractor to submit that
they were also in compliance with this Act and they would be checking every one of their employees for their eligibility
to work in the United States as well.  She asked for the Board’s consideration to adopt this policy.  


Chairman Smith asked Ms. Holland if she could put a price tag on the additional administrative costs that the County
would bear as a result of having to comply with this procedure.  Ms. Holland replied she would need to check with many
different departments but it would certainly be a tremendous additional burden.  She also noted that there was no
additional funding from the State and the County would have to pay a fee every time the data base was accessed to
check a non-citizen. She said the Board would have to approve a separate budget for this line item and this was included
in the Board’s mid year document that was approved tonight for that amount to be appropriated.  


Commissioner Maxwell asked if the County was just the agent to process forms and Ms. Holland replied yes and pointed
out that when bids are sent out certain forms would have to be completed by the individuals that were actually bidding
on the County’s projects as well as those individuals obtaining occupational tax certificates.  She pointed out that these
individuals would have to sign an affidavit in regard to being a citizen of the United States as well as additional forms.
She noted that the County would only check the individuals who are not in compliance and then send that information
to the Federal agency.  


Ms. Holland remarked that the County was required to do reporting to the State and this would be due in January of each
year.  She noted that the Board was required by the State to budget for this and $500 had been budgeted and County
Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that the County was required to pay $25 per month regardless of entering any
inquiries and then it would cost a certain amount for inquiries after that.  Hearing no further questions from the Board,
Chairman Smith asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter. 


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommended policy and procedures document titled “Eligibility
Verification of Non-Citizen Applicants for Benefits,” in compliance with the “Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance
Act” as amended.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0. A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 25, 2010
Page 4


C. CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S REQUEST FOR ESTABLISHING FEES FOR DEMOLITION PERMITS,
NOTICE OF VIOLATION, AND COMMERCIAL GREENHOUSE PERMITS AS REQUESTED BY THE
PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS DEPARTMENT:


Director of Permits and Inspections Joe Scarborough asked for the Board’s consideration for approval of establishing
the following fees and the estimated cost: (1) commercial greenhouse permit would be $450; (2) demolition permit would
be $100; (3) notice of violation enforcement for compliance would be $125; and (4) notice of violation enforcement for
non-compliance would be $225.  He remarked that he had contacted surrounding jurisdictions to determine whether or
not they charge fees for demolition permits or notice of violation permits.  He noted that all fifteen jurisdictions responding
to his request do charge a fee for demolition permits and those fees range from $35 to $300.  He said due to the
economy, foreclosures were at an all time high and enforcement of the International Property Maintenance Code had
become a full time job for all surveyed jurisdictions.  He remarked that he had rounded three of the estimates up and
the other one down so they would be even amounts.  


Chairman Smith expressed concern with the definition of greenhouse because it was possible to have a greenhouse
that was glass, four walls and a roof, but it was also possible to have a greenhouse that has water, electricity, and other
inspection elements that were not necessarily found in a greenhouse.  Mr. Scarborough remarked that the associated
inspections that go along with this recommended total fee did include the plumbing inspections, electrical inspections
as well as the mechanical inspections.  He said this would apply to an engineered metal aluminum prefab building and
this would be inspected to make sure that it was secured, anchored and assembled according to the engineered design.
Chairman Smith asked if the definition of greenhouse for these purposes be that it is a pre-engineered structure and Mr.
Scarborough replied yes that he agreed.        
 
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation for establishing fees for commercial
greenhouse permits in the amount of $450, demolition permits in the amount of $100, notice of violation enforcement
fees for compliance in the amount of $125, and notice of violation enforcement fees  for non-compliance in the amount
of $225.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 9", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


NEW BUSINESS:
D.      CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO APPLY FOR A PRE-DISASTER


MITIGATION COMMUNICATIONS AND WARNING GRANT THROUGH GEORGIA EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT FOR THREE WARNING SIRENS IN THE AMOUNT OF $83,625:


Director of Public Safety Allen McCullough remarked that this was an opportunity for the County to expand its program
in early warning notification.  He introduced Captain Pete Nelms to provide additional information and review the
specifics of the department’s request.  


Captain Pete Nelms remarked that he had been contacted by the Georgia Emergency Management Agency to determine
if the County was interested in obtaining a grant for additional warning capabilities in the community.  He said this was
a great opportunity for Fayette County to increase its warning capabilities and the total cost of the project would be
approximately $111,000 with the County being responsible for 25% or approximately $27,000.   


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve staff’s request for permission to apply for a pre-disaster mitigation
communications and warning grant through Georgia Emergency Management for three warning sirens with the County’s
25% matching portion to be $27,875 with said funds coming from the Early Warning Siren Construction Fund balance.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 25, 2010
Page 5


Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
MAIN STREET FAYETTEVILLE’S REQUEST REGARDING MARKING AND NUMBERING PARKING SPACES:
County Administrator Jack Krakeel asked for the Board’s consideration to approve Main Street Fayetteville’s request
regarding the marking and numbering of parking spaces adjacent to Heritage Park which is County property. He noted
that this would help the City defray the cost of having placards printed for every event held and allow for permanent
space marking to assist vendors participating in events. He added that he would have further discussion with the City
on the size and positioning of the numbering but he saw no fundamental problem with the request.


With full consent of the Board, Chairman Smith directed County Administrator Jack Krakeel to approve their request for
marking and numbering of parking spaces surrounding Heritage Park after a size and positioning of the numbering has
been determined and agreed upon.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH INTEGRATED SCIENCE & ENGINEERING, INC.: County Attorney
Scott Bennett noted that on December 10, 2009 the Board awarded a bid to Integrated Science & Engineering, Inc. in
the amount of $39,450 to conduct the Stormwater Utility Feasibility Study.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to
authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement between Fayette County and Integrated Science & Engineering, Inc.
in the amount of $39,450.
  
Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute a Professional Services Agreement with
Integrated Science & Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $39,450.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.   


STAFF REPORTS:
There was none.


BOARD REPORTS:
There was none.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss property acquisition.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss property acquisition.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Chairman Smith adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened the meeting back to open session.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming
that property acquisition had been discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 25, 2010
Page 6


ADJOURNMENT:   With no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting at 7:45
p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 11  day of March, 2010.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








The Agenda
Board of Commissioners


March 11, 2010
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
A. Presentation of a Proclamation to “Keep Fayette First!” by partnering with


the U.S. Census Bureau to help ensure a full and accurate count in 2010.


B. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing March 15 as the Birthday of the
American Legion.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #729 as a split


award to E. R. Snell Contracting, Inc. and C.W. Matthews, Inc. as primary
vendors and C. W. Matthews, Inc. and E. R. Snell Contracting, Inc. as
secondary vendors for asphalt to be used in paving and resurfacing
projects.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #734 to Curb Specialist,
Inc. as the primary vendor and to Trammell-Horton Contracting LLC as the
secondary vendor for an annual contract for miscellaneous concrete work
to be used in various construction and road maintenance projects.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #735 to Peek Pavement
Markings LLC for an annual contract for roadway striping and pavement
marking services to be used in various construction and road maintenance
projects.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #736 to Martin Edwards
& Associates for grinding vegetative debris at the Fayette County Transfer
Station, in the amount of $39,500 and a price per cubic yard of $1.20.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an intergovernmental
agreement with Fayetteville for the resurfacing of Brandon Lane and
Highview Trace.  


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the FY 2011budget calendar and
budget parameters.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County enter into a contract
with Kucera International, Incorporated for aerial orthophotography in the
amount of $24,822.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2  and 4  Thursday each month at 7:00 pmnd th


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200


Fax: (770) 305-5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:administration@fayettecountyga.gov





Agenda
March 11, 2010
Page 2


8. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on February 25, 2010.


OLD BUSINESS:
C. Consideration of staff’s recommendation that the County’s employee health benefit be changed from a “fully


insured” plan to a “self-insured” plan.


NEW BUSINESS:
D.       Consideration of staff’s recommendation to establish a Pension Committee for the quarterly review of fund  


performance for the County’s Defined Contribution Plan, 401A and 457B Retirement Plans.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation for the FY 2011 budget calendar and budget parameters.


Prior to the start of the annual budget process, a recommended budget calendar and the recommended budget parameters are 


presented to the Board of Commissioners for consideration.  This item was previously presented to the Board at their annual retreat on 


January 29, 2010. These parameters outline any limitations or restrictions needed by those who prepare the County's annual budget. 


 


Fayette County's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of each year.


Approval of the FY 2011 budget calendar and budget parameters. 


n/a


Yes Friday, January 29, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010







FY 2011 Budget Calendar
Recommended


2010 DATE
RESPONSIBLE 


PARTY BUDGET ACTIVITY TO OCCUR


Operating Budget


Mar 15, 2010 Mon Departments                
Finance Department Budget packages distributed to departments.


Apr 2, 2010 Fri Departments                 
Finance Department Budget submissions due from departments.


Apr 27-29, 2010 Tue-Thu Departments              
Staff


Budget workshops as necessary between departments, County 
Administrator, and Finance.


May 5, 2010 Wed Finance Department     
Commissioners Deliver FY 2011 recommended budget to Board of Commissioners.


May 24-25, 2010 Mon-Tue
Commissioners    
Departments                   
Staff


Conduct budget workshops of departments with the Board of 
Commissioners.


Jun 2, 2010 Wed Finance Department     
Commissioners Submit budget proposal to the BOC.


Jun 10, 2010 Thu Commissioners               
Staff Hold first Public Hearing on the FY 2011 budget.


Jun 24, 2010 Thu Commissioners               
Staff


Hold second Public Hearing on the FY 2011 budget (Adopt the FY 2011 
Budget).


N:\BUDGET\2011 Budget\FY2011 Budget Calendar.xls







FY 2011 BUDGET PARAMETERS 
Recommended 


 
 
Parameters: 
 
1. The FY 2011 Budget should be developed taking into consideration current FY 2010 revenue 
levels that have been lower than expected. 
 
2. Current FY 2010 Personnel levels should be maintained. 
 a. Current FY 2010 vacant positions to be eliminated effective July 1, 2010.  
            b. There should be no new positions (or position upgrades) requested for FY 2011. 
 c. There should be no promotions requested for FY 2011. 
 d. There should be no merit-based salary increases for FY 2011. 
 e. There should be no COLA adjustments for FY 2011. 
  
3. There should be no new Capital projects requested for FY 2011. 
 
4. There should be no new CIP projects requested for FY 2011. 
 
5. The current 5-year CIP Plan should be delayed one year.  
 
6. There should be no new or replacement vehicles or equipment requested for FY 2011. 
 
7. Departments should keep their operating (non-personnel) budget requests for FY 2011 at the 
same level, or lower, than their FY 2010 approved operating budgets. 
 
8. The FY 2011 annual balanced budget development process will consist of only one element: 
Operating budget. 
 
9. Any deviations from these parameters should be presented by the departments to the County 
Administrator during the budget workshops. Upon recommendation, the departments would need 
to provide the required budget documents for processing. 
 
10. The FY 2011 Budget development process should take place between mid-March and the 
third week of May of 2010. This will allow for any mid-year budget adjustments to be finalized, 
end-of-calendar year revenues to be received, and FY 2010 year-end figures to be more 
accurately projected. 


   
N:\BUDGET\2011 Budget\FY2011 Budget Parameters.doc 





		FinanceBudgetCalendarParametersAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		FinanceBudgetCalendarParametersBackup

		FinanceFY2011 Budget CalendarBackup1.pdf

		BudgetCalendar



		FinanceFY2011 Budget ParametersBackup








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


GIS Committee County Attorney


Approval of staff's recommendation that the County enter into a contract with Kucera International, Incorporated for aeriel 


orthophotography in the amount of $24,822.


At a meeting in January, representatives of the the County's GIS (Geographic Information System) Committee Fayette County apprised 


the Board of Commissioners of an opportunity the County had to participate in a project whereby new aerial photography could be 


provided through a program by the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) at a much reduced cost. 


 


At the end of the discussion, the Board voted to participate in the ARC-sponsored program , along with the United States Geological 


Survey and the vendor for the aerial photography, Kucera International, at a cost to the County not to exceed $24,822. 


 


A contract with Kucera International Incorporated has been reviewed by the County Attorney and is ready to be executed by the 


Chairman.


Vote to authorize the Chairman to execute a contract between Fayette County and Kucera International Incorporated to perform aerial 


orthophotography of the County. The amount of the contract is $24,822.


The funding for this project is allocated in an existing CIP Project Account.


Yes Wednesday, January 6, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010









		GIS Steering Committee Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		GIS Steering Committee Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke/Lewis Patterson


Consideration of staff's recommendation that the County's employee health benefit be changed from a "fully insured" plan to a "self-


insured" plan.


The County's employee insurance program is renewable on June 1 each year.  Staff was asked to review and analyze various options 


available to the County, particularly in terms of cost containment to the County and to the employees.  The analysis included a review of 


the current health insurance plan and impending increases in premiums in the upcoming year, along with a review of whether or not the 


County would be interested in returning to a "self-insured" health plan, much as the County used for many years in the past.  At the 


Board's Workshop on March 4, staff presented information to the Board, along with representatives from Meritain Health, a third party 


administrator for self-insured plan holders.  Also present was Scott Burrell of Pacific General, the County's consultant for employee health 


benefits. 


 


The County's current employee health provider, Blue Cross Blue Shield notified Fayette County to expect a 23% increase in premiums in 


the upcoming year.  After a discussion of significant cost savings to the County and to employees by converting it's health insurance from 


a "fully-insured" plan to a "self-insured" plan, the Board directed staff to prepare this issue for a vote at the March 11 Board meeting. 


 


To accomplish the changes being recommended, a series of actions by the Board of Commissioners will be required.


Motion to convert the County's employee health insurance from a "fully insured" plan to a "self-insured plan; to engage the services of 


Meritain Health as Third Party Administrator for health, dental, vision and flexible spending accounts;  to have employee life insurance, 


and short and long term disability benefits provided by Assurant; and that the Chairman be authorized to execute any and all documents 


necessary to effect these changes, including non-renewal notices to the current providers of these services, BC/BS and Greater Life.        


Health insurance and other benefits are budgeted annually. Costs are shared by the employee and the County.


Yes Wednesday, March 3, 2010


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


 


The medical network being offered by Meritain Health is the Cigna Network.  Prescriptions will be managed by Scrip World.


Old BusinessThursday, March 11, 2010







 
To:  Board of Commissioners 


 Jack Krakeel, County Administrator 
 


From:  Connie Boehnke, Human Resources Director 
 


Date:  March 5, 2010 
 
Subject: Employee Health Insurance Options  
 
 
Human Resources has analyzed the various options for employee heath insurance going 
forward.  Much research and study has been dedicated to looking into whether the County 
should continue with a fully insured plan or convert to a self insured program. 
 
Scott Burrell with Pacific General Financial was contacted by the Board of 
Commissioners for the purpose of consulting with staff to explore the feasibility of 
moving to a self funded benefit program.  They have been able to put together a self 
funded plan working with Meritain, the largest privately held third party administrator for 
self funded health plans.  The proposed plan will mirror the current Blue Cross Blue 
Shield (BCBS) plan with potential cost savings to the County and with no premium 
increases for employees.  It would operate in the Great Western Cigna network as a PPO, 
but with the same co-pay and deductible structure as the present HMO plus it would 
allow employees to go to an in network specialist without a referral from their primary 
care physician.   
 
The County was self insured from 1993 until 2002.  During that period annual 
contribution increases averaged 3.7%.  Since the County switched to self funded health 
insurance in 2004, the annual contribution increase has averaged 8.5%.  Last year the 
plan funding structure was modified to avoid a 17% increase.  BCBS has presented a 
proposal to renew the current fully insured program with a 23% increase.  Given current 
budget restraints, this would require making extensive plan modifications and initiating 
substantial premium increases for the county and employees.   
 
To stay with BCBS, it would mean an increase from the current annual plan cost of 
$4,577,562.60 to $5,620,042.20.  Meritain can provide the same level of coverage as the 
current BCBS plan plus our total health benefits needs, including medical, dental, vision, 
COBRA and flexible spending all in one package.  Currently, Ceridian provides flexible 
spending.  By using Meritain for all of these health benefits, the County can save a 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 







minimum of $315,652.16 even if the plans experience a catastrophic year and as much as 
$1,398,682.96 if the plans have a good year with low claims experience.  Either way, this 
range of savings is clearly substantial.  
  
As stated earlier, employee premiums would remain at their current rate, as outlined in 
the table below, maintaining the same 70/30 split instituted for the current plan year 
between the amount that the County pays and what the employee pays.  All employees 
would be under one plan, the PPO through the Great Western Cigna network.   
 
 


CURRENT RATES 70% ER - 30 EE% 
  Monthly Employee County  


Cigna PPO Premium Contribution Contribution    


Single 309.75 92.93 216.83 
Employee/Children 628.67 188.60 440.07 
Employee/Spouse 780.51 234.15 546.36 
Employee/Family 1,034.40 310.32 724.08 


 
 
Coverage for ancillary products such as disability and voluntary life will now be covered 
by Assurant instead of Greater Georgia Life.  There would be a minor increase for Short 
Term Disability (STD) premiums due to utilization.  The rate per $10 of benefit under the 
90 day wait option would increase from $0.18 to &0.21 and under the 45 day wait option 
would increase from $0.36 to $0.42.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid for by the 
employee. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
In light of the potential savings the County can attain by changing from fully funded to 
self funded, HR staff recommends to continue utilizing the services of Scott Burrell, 
changing ancillary coverages to Assurant and changing to self funded program with 
Meritain.  The plan design for the proposed health coverage with Meritain is outlined in 
the table below. 
 
   


Meritain Proposed Plan for 6/1/2010 
Plan Type:   PPO 
Network:   CIGNA-GreatWest 
   
Lifetime Maximum  In $2,000,000  
 Out Combined w/In Network 
   
Deductible (Individual/Family):  In $500 Individual / $1,500 Family 
 Out $1,000 Individual / $3,000 Family 
   
Annual Out-of-Pocket 
Maximum:  In $0 Individual / $0 Family 
(excluding deductible)  Out $4,000 Individual / $12,000 Family 
   
Per Admission Hospital Copay:  In NA 
 Out NA 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 







   
Physician Copay:  In $25 Copay PCP / $25 Specialist 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Coinsurance:  In Plan pays 100% after Deductible 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Inpatient Hospital Copay:  In Plan pays 100% after Deductible 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Inpatient Physician Services:  In Plan pays 100% after Deductible 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Outpatient Surgery Copay:  In $100 copay then 100% 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Outpatient Physician Services:  In Plan pays 100% after Deductible 
 Out Plan pays 60% after Deductible 
   
Emergency Room Facility Copay:   $100 copay (waived if admitted) 
   
Prescription Card: In $15 generic 
  $30 preferred brand 
  $60 non-preferred brand 
   
Mail Order Drugs: In 2x retail copay for generic & preferred 


  
Non-preferred not covered on Mail 
Order 


 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 





		HR Health Insurance RequestFile.pdf

		HR Health InsuranceRecommendationBackup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator


Approval of staff's recommendation to establish a Pension Committee for the quarterly review of fund performance for the County's 


Defined Contribution Plan, 401A and 457B Retirement Plans.


The County changed the provider for the County's 401A and 457B Defined Contribution Plans from the Hartford, Inc. to Mass Mutual in 


July 2008. The Plan is administered by Morgan Stanley-Smith Barney.  The firm has requested that the County establish a Pension 


Committee which can monitor the performance of funds being made available to employees in which to invest their employee 


contributions.  Quarterly reports will be provided to the Committee by Morgan Stanley-Smith Barney which will provide a synopsis of  


individual fund performance against established benchmarks. This information is then utilized to determine if funds need to be added or 


removed from further investment or placed on a "watch list" to ensure optimum performance for plan participants. Historically, under 


previous plans no such committee existed. 


Approve the formation of a Pension Committee consisting of the following members: A member of the Board of Commissioners, the 


County Administrator, Human Resources Director, Water System Director, Public Safety Director, and the Sheriff.  


No funding is required.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 11, 2010









































		Pension Committee Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Pension CommitteeBackup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina and Tom Williams


Presentation of a Proclamation to "Keep Fayette First!" by partnering with the U.S. Census Bureau to help ensure a full and accurate 


count in 2010.


April 1, 2010, is Census Day, the twenty-third since ratification of the U.S. Constitution in 1787.  The Constitution calls for a census every 


10 years to assist in equally apportioning representation in Congress and to determine budgetary requirements, amongst other purposes. 


 


The 2010 Census questionnaires will be mailed to all residential street addresses in mid-March.  The questionnaire is to be completed on 


April 1st and returned by mail. 


 


Fayette County had the highest return rates amongst Georgia counties for the 1990 and 2000 Census (76% and 79%).  This 


Proclamation promotes the goal to "Keep Fayette First!" for 2010.  To that end we have already provided a list of sites for the Census 


Bureau to establish Questionnaire Assistance Centers and formed a Complete Count Committee to help in getting information out to 


various parts of the community.  The Proclamation will give additional attention and support to the efforts underway.


Issue Proclamation. Tom Williams and Pete Frisina will be present.


Not Applicable


Yes Wednesday, February 3, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 11, 2010













		Planing&ZoningCensusProclamationAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		Planning&ZoningCensusProclamationBackup1

		Planning&ZoningCensus-MinutesBackup2






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


County Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Presentation of Proclamation recognizing the March 15 as the Birthday of the American Legion.


Fayette County is fortunate to have two chapters of the American Legion, Posts 50 and 105. Post 105 has started in the County in 1927, 


with Post 50 relocating to Fayette County a number of years ago. Together these Posts have approximately 700 members.  


 


The American Legion first started in 1919 after World War I ended and soldiers in France, prior to coming back to America, wanted a 


means of communicating and fellowshiping with other veterans once they were home. A meeting of servicemen, known as the "Paris 


Caucus" occurred on March 15, 1919 in France, where what is known as the American Legion was started.  


 


Local Legion members will be present to receive the Proclamation.


Issue Proclamation.


No


No No


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 11, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #729 as a split award to E. R. Snell Contracting, Inc. and C. W. Matthews, Inc. 


as primary vendors and C. W. Matthews, Inc and E. R. Snell Contracting, Inc. as secondary vendors for asphalt to be used in paving and 


resurfacing projects.


This annual contract is used to procure various asphalt mixes during the paving season.  E. R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone and C. W. 


Matthews of Tyrone provided the lowest quotes.  A split award is recommended to take advantage of the lowest possible price. 


 


For primary vendor, we recommend: 


E. R. Snell Contracting, Inc of Tyrone for: 9.5 mm Type 1 Asphalt, 9.5 mm Type II Asphalt, 12.5 mm Asphalt and Permaflex Asphalt; and 


C. W. Matthews, Inc. of Tyrone for: 4.75 mm Asphalt, 19 mm Asphalt and 25 mm Asphalt.  


 


For secondary vendor, we recommend: 


C. W. Matthews, Inc of Tyrone for: 9.5 Type I Asphalt, 9.5 mm Type II Asphalt, 12.5 mm Asphalt, and Permaflex Asphalt, and E. R. Snell 


Contracting  of Tyrone for: 4.75 mm Asphalt, 19 mm Asphalt, and 25 mm Asphalt. 


 


Backup to secondary vendor we recommend: 


C. W. Matthews, Inc. of Forest Park, for:  all mixes.


Award of Bid # 729 for the annual asphalt contract as a split award to C. W. Matthews, Inc. of Tyrone and E. R. Snell Contracting of 


Tyrone as specifically described above.


Funds are budgeted annually for the cost of asphalt.


Yes Thursday April 9,2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010





		RoadDeptAsphaltBid #729AgendaRequestFile.pdf

		RoadDeptAsphalt Bid #729Recommendation










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #734 to Curb Specialist, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Trammell-Horton Contracting 


LLC as the secondary vendor for an annual contract for miscellaneous concrete work to be used in various construction and road 


maintenance projects.


The annual contract is used to procure the services of a concrete contractor for use throughout the year on various construction and road 


maintenance projects.  An annual control will expedite the process of getting a contractor to the site in a timely manner.  The annual 


contract will expire December 31,2010. 


 


For primary vendor we recommend Curb Specialist, Inc. for having submitted the lowest overall bid. 


 


For secondary vendor we recommend Trammell-Horton Contracting, LLC for having submitted the next lowest overall bid.


Award of Bid #734 for an annual contract for miscellaneous concrete work to Curb Specialist, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Trammell-


Horton Contracting, LLC as the secondary vendor.


Funding for concrete work is budgeted annually in the Road Department's Technical Services account 10040220-521316.


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010





		RoadDeptConcrete Bid #734 AgendaRequestFile.pdf

		RoadDeptConcrete Bid #734 RecommendationBackup1

		RoadDeptConcrete Bid #734 Tally SheetBackup2










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid # 735 to Peek Pavement Markings LLC for an annual contract for roadway striping and 


pavement marking services to be used in various construction and road maintenance projects.


This annual contract is used to procure the services of a pavement marking contractor for use throughout the year on various 


construction and road maintenance projects.  An annual contract will expedite the process of getting a contractor to the site in a timely 


manner.  The annual contract will expire December 31, 2010.


Award of Bid #735 for an annual contract for roadway striping and pavement marking services to Peek Pavement Marking, LLC.


Funds are budgeted annually for the cost of striping.


Yes April 9, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010





		RoadDeptPavement Marking Bid #735AgendaRequestFile.pdf

		RoadDeptPavement Marking Bid #735 Recommendation










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with Fayetteville for the resurfacing of Brandon Lane 


and Highview Trace.


The county routinely enters into intergovernmental agreements with our municipalities whereby the county resurfaces or paves city 


streets. Typically, the county provides manpower and equipment and the municipality will pay cost of materials. 


 


This proposed Agreement calls for Fayette County to provide equipment and labor for the resurfacing of two (2) city streets identified in 


the Special Stipulations.  All material costs are to be paid for by Fayetteville.  The work will be performed in the 2010 paving season.  The 


total length of streets to be resurfaced is 0.64. 


 


The streets included in this request are Brandon Lane and Highview Trace.


Approval of Street Resurfacing Intergovernmental Agrement with Fayetteville for resurfacing of Brandon Lane and Highview Trace. 


The cost to the county is for providing labor and equipment.  These costs will be paid out of Road Department's existing budget.


Yes 10-23-09


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010





		RoadDeptStreet Resurfacing FayettevilleAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		RoadDeptStreetResurfacingFayettevilleBackup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Solid Waste Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's request to award bid # 736 to Martin Edwards & Associates, Inc. for grinding vegetative debris at the Fayette County 


Transfer Station, in the amount of $ 39,500 and a price per cubic yard of $1.20. 


At least annually we must grind the vegetative debris collected at the Transfer Station's yard waste area.  On February 1, 2010 bids were  


posted on the Fayette County web site and distributed resulting in seven responses.  In excess of 25,000 cubic yards of vegetative debris 


has accumulated and we receive an additional 100 - 150 cubic yards daily.  The accumulated vegetative debris will be ground into mulch 


well suited for gardening and yard work available to Fayette County citizens at no charge. 


 


Martin Edwards & Associates Inc was the apparent low bidder with a lump sum cost of $39,500.00 and a price per cubic yard of $1.20.  


Stormwater Management personnel recommends acceptance of this bid and will monitor the operation. 


 


Lump sum cost - The initial work phase will be grinding all the stock-piled vegetative debris at the 1st Manassas Road Transfer Station at 


the close of business on Thursday, February 4, 2010.  


 


Per cubic yard cost - grinding all additional stock-piled vegetative debris after close of business on Thursday, February 4, 2010, and on 


an ongoing basis.  Prior to any secondary grinding, the successful contractor/company and Fayette County must agree on the volume in 


cubic yards of additional grinding work to be performed in writing.  


Requesting Board approval of award bid # 736 to Martin Edwards & Associates Inc. for a lump sum cost of $39,500.00 and a price per 


cubic yard of $1.20 for grinding vegetative debris at the County's Landfill.


The current balance available in Account , Landfill Services, is $ 66,556.35.


Yes Wednesday, August 1, 2007


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 11, 2010





		Solid Waste- Bid#736GrindingAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		Solid Waste - Bid#736GrindingBackup







